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January 18, 2010

Mr. Michael Mundaca Honorable Douglas H. Shulman
Acting Assistant Secretary (Tax Policy) Commissioner

Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service

1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 1111 Constitution Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20220 Washington, DC 20224

Honorable William J. Wilkins
Chief Counsel

Internal Revenue Service

1111 Constitution Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20224

Re: Possible Tax Relief for Haiti Relief Effozti*

Dear Sirs:

We are all aware of the tragedy in Haiti. It is clear that this disaster,
so close to our shores, has had a devastating impact on a substantial
number of Americans, and that many Americans would like to contribute
to the rescue and recovery efforts. The President has pledged the full
support of the United States to the government and people of Haiti, but
many people wish to contribute directly. In that regard, we write to
recommend that the Treasury Department and Internal Revenue Service

*

The principal author of this letter is Andrew Oringer, the co-chair of the New
York State Bar Association Tax Section’s Committee on Employee Benefits.
Helpful comments were received from Erika Nijenhuis, Michael Schler and
Diana Wollman. This letter may be cited as New York State Bar Association
Tax Section, Possible Tax Relief for Haiti Relief Efforts (Report No. 1200,
January 18, 2010).
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consider issuing guidance providing the types of tax relief that have been made available in
connection with certain other recent catastrophic events, both in the United States and abroad.'

In particular, some employers may wish to institute leave-sharing programs in
order to permit employees to donate some of their leave-time to other employees with family
members in Haiti or leave-donation programs in order to permit employees to donate the value of
their accrued leave time to charitable organizations providing assistance in Haiti. Programs of this
kind raise issues relating to whether any party to such transactions has taxable income, and the
nature and availability of any deductions. The IRS has addressed these issues in several previously
issued Notices.

Notices 2001-69 and 2005-68 relate to leave-based donation programs established
by employers to aid victims of the September 11 attacks and Hurricane Katrina, respectively.
Under these programs, employees elect to forgo vacation, sick, or personal leave in exchange for
cash payments an employer makes as charitable contributions. In these Notices, the IRS stated
that, under certain conditions, it would not assert that (i) certain cash payments an employer makes
in exchange for vacation, sick, or personal leave that its employees elect to forgo constitute gross
income or wages of the employees, (ii) the opportunity to make such an election results in
constructive receipt to the employees, or (iii) an employer is permitted to deduct these cash
payments only as charitable contributions rather than as business expenses.”> Certain
reporting-relating relief was also provided. These Notices were issued under the general
provisions of section 61 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Notice 2006-59 provides tax relief in the case of certain leave-sharing plans that
permit employees to deposit leave (of absence) in an employer-sponsored leave bank for use by
other employees who have been adversely affected by a “major disaster,” as determined pursuant
to statute and Presidential declaration. Generally, such a plan allows a leave donor to deposit
accrued leave in an employer-sponsored leave bank for use by other employees who have been
adversely affected by the disaster. Under that Notice, the IRS generally will not assert that a leave
donor who deposits leave in an employer-sponsored leave bank under a disaster leave-sharing plan
described in the Notice realizes income or has wages or compensation with respect to the deposited
leave. Notice 2006-59 was issued pursuant to section 61 and certain statutory provisions relating
to disasters in the United States.?

See Notice 2001-69, 2001-2 C.B. 491 (September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks); Revenue Ruling 2003-12,
2003-1 C.B. 283 (floods); Notice 2005-23, 2005-1 C.B. 732 (Indian Ocean tsunamis); Notice 2005-68,
2005-2 C.B. 622 (Hurricane Katrina); Notice 2006-59, 2006-2 C.B.60 (major disasters); Notice 2008-57,
2008-28 1.R.B. 80 (earthquake in China).

Notice 2001-69 did not address the constructive receipt issue.

In addition to section 61, Notice 2006-59 refers to the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act (Pub. L. No. 93-288) (the "Stafford Act"), 42 U.S.C. § 5170, which generally provides that
the President may declare an event a major disaster in the United States, and Pub. L. No. 105-18, 5 U.S.C.
§ 6391, which provides that the President may direct the Office of Personnel Management to establish a
leave-sharing plan for federal employees who are adversely affected by a disaster or emergency. These

(footnote continued)



Mr. Michael Mundaca, The Honorable Douglas H. Shulman, Hon. William J. Wilkins
Page 3

Section 139 of the Internal Revenue Code also provides a possible avenue for tax
relief, in the case of U.S. taxpayers who may receive qualified disaster relief payments. Section
139(c) provides that a qualified disaster means, among other things, a disaster from any event that
the Secretary of the Treasury determines is of a catastrophic nature. The Secretary of the Treasury
has issued such determinations previously in the case of the 2005 tsunamis in the Indian Ocean and
the 2008 earthquake in China.’

As stated above, we believe the Treasury and IRS should consider providing tax
guidance of this kind with respect to the Haiti disaster. We appreciate your consideration of our
comments. Please let us know if you would like to discuss these matters further or if we can assist
you in any other way.

Respectfully submitted,

Erika W. Nijenhuis W—\

Chair

cc: George H. Bostick
Benefits Tax Counsel
Department of the Treasury

J. Mark Iwry
Deputy Assistant Secretary

for Retirement and Health Policy
Department of the Treasury

Emily S. McMahon
Deputy Assistant Secretary (Tax Policy)
Department of the Treasury

(footnote continued)

statutes provide for the determination by the President that an event constitutes a “major disaster” or, in the
case of 5 U.S.C. § 6391, an “emergency.” The tax relief provided by the Notice appears, however, to be
derived from the IRS’s power to determine what constitutes gross income under section 61.

Notices 2005-23 and 2008-57; see also Revenue Ruling 2003-12 (floods).
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Helen H. Morrison
Acting Deputy Benefits Tax Counsel
Department of the Treasury

Joshua D. Odintz
Acting Tax Legislative Counsel
Department of the Treasury

Clarissa C. Potter
Deputy Chief Counsel -- Technical
Internal Revenue Service

Lon B. Smith
National Counsel to the Chief Counsel for Special Projects
Internal Revenue Service



